
Minutes from July 16, 2003 MSFC PMC 
Prepared by VS10/Rich Gladwin 

 
DD01/Rex Geveden chaired the meeting.  Mr. Gladwin reviewed the agenda.  The agenda 
included: (1) Review of Action Items, (2) MSFC Health Status Trends (3) Formulation 
request for the In-Space Propulsion (ISP) Technology Project  (4) Request a change in 
approved project baseline from the Space Shuttle Main Engine Advanced Health 
Management System (SSME AHMS) Phase 1 Project. 
 
Mr. Gladwin reviewed the open action items.  Mr. Geveden asked why the due date had 
been extended until November 2003 for the action to define the training and experience 
requirements for project managers, systems engineers and project control personnel (action 
1 from the 08-23-02 MSFC PMC).  Mr. Geveden stated his philosophy was to roll out a 
70% solution versus having further delays.  The action for completed and terminated 
projects to document historical records (action 1 from the 06-24-03 MSFC PMC) will be 
expanded to include additional projects.  A CAITS action will be generated to accomplish 
this action.  Mr. Steve Beale recommended several other projects, such as X-33, X-34, 
Propulsion Module, and on-going projects such as Chandra be added.  Mr. Axel Roth 
stated that a line item needed to be included in project budgets so that adequate historical 
records were generated.  Ms. Dinah Williams indicated that agency and center 
requirements to keep historical records were in place, but that the “how-to” documentation 
was lacking.  This has lead to inconsistent and inadequate record-keeping.  All projects 
completed and/or terminated since May 2002, plus other high profile projects will be 
included in the action.  As part of the CAITS, VS10 will provide a list of projects to be 
evaluated.   
 
ACTION 1 from the 06-24-03 MSFC PMC (Revised per PMC discussion):   
Assigned to: FD, SD, MP, TD and UP 
Action: Answer the following two questions for all projects completed or terminated since 
May 2002 (plus X-33 and X-34). 

(1) Has the Project’s historical records been retired per Agency and Center 
requirements through the MSFC repository (Yes/No)?  If “No”, enter date when the 
records will be submitted. 
(2) Do the project’s historical files capture lessons learned (Yes/No)?  If “No”, 
provide date when lessons will be documented and submitted to the MSFC 
repository. 

Due Date: 09/12/03 
 
Mr. Gladwin presented the health status trends for MSFC projects.  Five projects were 
highlighted as having a ‘red’ health status during May 2003.  The five projects included: 
SOLAR-B, DART, PROSEDS, SSME AHMS Phase 1 and X-37.  Each project will be 
scheduled to present its proposed re-baseline to the MSFC PMC.  Mr. Gladwin also 
presented a list of MSFC projects that had reported a ‘yellow’ health status during May 
2003. 
 
Mr. Gladwin announced the out-of-board decision to make the SHIVA project an in-house 
project.  Mr. Roth had approved the change prior to the PMC meeting.  A copy of the out-
of-board presentation will be maintained in the PMC historical records. 

 1



 
TD05/Mr. Les Johnson presented the ISP Technology project request to complete the 
formulation process.  ISP is a Code S program.  Its objective is to develop in-space 
propulsion technologies that can enable and/or benefit near and mid-term NASA science 
missions by significantly reducing cost, mass, and/or travel times.  Mr. Beale asked for a 
point of contact in Code S so that the procurement office could be assist ISP when future 
NRA’s are released.   Mr. James Bilbro asked how much of the competed work was won 
by MSFC as in-house work.  Mr. Johnson responded that only a small percentage, less than 
$1 million out of roughly $30 million in FY03 was won by MSFC.  Mr. Geveden asked if 
the ISP project had a good understanding of what it meant to reach TRL 6.  Mr. Johnson 
responded that there was a good understanding and that there were independent groups 
being used to assess the definition of TRL’s.  Mr. Johnson stated that MSFC had competed 
for new work by submitting 6 proposals for In-Space Propulsion NRA’s.  Mr. Beale asked 
for a listing of the proposals that were submitted to help substantiate how MSFC is 
meeting the Competitive Sourcing requirements from the President’s management agenda.  
Mr. Gerry Flanagan questioned whether the ISP was a single project or if there were 
multiple projects within ISP.  Mr. Johnson replied that ISP was a single project and that he 
was the project manager.  The technology areas within ISP are lead by technology 
managers.  The technology managers are responsible for COTR duties and integrating 
contract efforts within their technology area.  Mr. Johnson emphasized that ISP’s stated 
objective was to advance technology from TRL 3 to TRL 6.  Once at TRL 6, a flight 
validation would be required prior to using the technology in a flight program.  ISP is not 
responsible for flight validation of technologies, but has established a working relationship 
with the New Millennium Program to perform the flight validation work.  When asked 
about the budget reserve allocation, Mr. Johnson responded that the ISP reserves are 
allocated based on the overall priority and maturity of the technology area.  Mr. Geveden 
asked why MSFC had won so few of the competitive proposals for new work.  Mr. Singer 
stated that TD was attempting to improve its bid and proposal process so that MSFC is 
more competitive.  Mr. Geveden suggested that TD consult with Larry Russell (NSSTC) to 
provide some guidance in the proposal development process.  Mr. Geveden asked why the 
risk titled, “project plan incomplete” was ranked as having high consequence.  Mr. 
Johnson replied improper project planning could compromise project objectives.  Lack of 
an ISP Program plan was identified as an impediment.  Mr. Thomas stated that the ISP 
project could proceed with documenting its project plan by anchoring it to the PCA and 
FAD.  Mr. Geveden asked how project risks are identified.  Mr. Johnson replied that it was 
both a bottoms up (from the technology areas) and a top down (from office managers) 
approach.  Mr. Geveden asked if the workforce and budget numbers being presented to the 
PMC were consistent with the POP numbers.  Mr. Johnson responded that they were 
consistent.  Mr. Geveden then gave the ISP technology project MSFC commitment of 
resources to complete the formulation process. 
 
MP21/Jeff Spencer presented the SSME AHMS Phase 1 request to change the approved 
project baseline schedule.  The project consists of modifications to the existing SSME 
controller by adding a vibration redline monitor for the high pressure turbopumps.  The 
project will reduce the vehicle ascent risk by an estimated 10.3%.  Mr. Geveden asked if 
the Shuttle program was seeking the largest gains in its upgrades projects.  Mr. Spencer 
replied that the Shuttle upgrades were selected in this manner.  Mr. Spencer was asked if 
AHMS Phase 1 was ready, would it fly on the return to flight mission.  Mr. Spencer 

 2



indicated that AHMS Phase 1 would not be active for its first flight, but would fly on one 
engine in the monitor only mode.  Mr. Geveden asked if additional MSFC workforce 
would be required to support the proposed schedule slip.  Mr. Spencer replied that no 
additional MSFC workforce was needed, since the project had very little MSFC civil 
service involvement other than management oversight.  Mr. Geveden asked how the 
proposed schedule re-baseline would be approved at the Shuttle program level.  Mr. 
Spencer replied that he would present the change in project schedule to the Space Shuttle 
Program Requirements Control Board (PRCB) for approval.  Mr. Geveden provided the 
MSFC commitment of resources for the SSME AHMS Phase 1 re-baseline plan. 
 
No new actions were assigned.  The meeting was then concluded. 
 
 

 3



Attendance for MSFC PMC – July 16, 2003 
 
Name Organization 
COUNCIL MEMBERS  
Rex Geveden DD01 
Axel Roth DE01 
James Bilbro DA01 
Dale Thomas VS01 
Frank Mayhall RS01 
Bill Kilpatrick ED01 
Chris Singer (for Denny Kross) TD01 
Robert Crumbley (for Jan Davis) FD01 
Tom Stinson (for Ann Whitaker) SD01 
Alex McCool MP01 
Chris Cowart (for Amanda Goodson) QS01 
Jim Carter (for Sheila Cloud) AD01 
Steve Beale PS01 
Bill Hicks LS01 
Susan Cloud (for Tereasa Washington) CD01 
Sheila Fogle (for Jim Ellis) AD30 
 
 
OTHERS IN ATTENDANCE

 

Rich Gladwin (PMC Secretary) VS10 
Gerald Flanagan VS10 
Alberto Duarte TD02 
Doug Blackwell TD05 
George Harvey PS42 
Jeff Spencer MP21 
Dinah Williams VS10 
Les Johnson TD05 
Rae Meyer TD05 
Ricky Power TD11 
George Hopson MP21 
  
  
   

 4


	Attendance for MSFC PMC – July 16, 2003
	Name
	Organization
	COUNCIL MEMBERS
	OTHERS IN ATTENDANCE


